
http://www.eastertulegsa.com/
mailto:info@easterntulegsa.com




3 

12. CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: 
 

a. Report on Action Taken in Closed Session as Required by Government Code 54957.1 
 
13. NEXT MEETING DATE 
 

a. Next Regular Meeting - Thursday, June 6, 2019 at 2 p.m. at City of Porterville 
Council Chambers (291 N. Main Street, Porterville, CA) 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 
 
A person with a qualifying disability under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 may request the GSA 
Authority to provide a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate in any public 
meeting of the GSA Authority. Such assistance includes appropriate alternative formats for the agendas and agenda 
packets used for any public meetings of the GSA. Requests for such assistance and for agendas and agenda packets 
shall be made in person, by telephone, facsimile, or written correspondence to the GSA Authority Secretary or to the 
City of Porterville Public Works Department (559) 791-7804, at least 48 hours before a public GSA meeting. 



 

 Board of Directors  
 May 2, 2019 

 
 

 

 
Agenda Packet 

 

 

 
 

Other materials, exhibits, and presentations may be 
distributed on the day of the Board Meeting.  

 

 





















































 

 Board of Directors  
 May 2, 2019 

 
 

Agenda Item 5.f 

Consider approval of 4Creeks, Inc. proposal for Phase 1 
Development of SGMA Management Website 

Application 
 

Staff Report to the ETGSA Board 

 
Subject:  Building a SGMA Data Management System 

Submitted By:   Executive Director 

Recommended Action: Move to approve the 4Creeks, Inc. Proposal for Phase 1 
Development of a SGMA Management Website Application 

 
Executive Summary: 

ETGSA is in need of a comprehensive Data Management System (DMS) in order to manage 
monitoring data, ensure SGMA compliance, and to facilitate the efficient administration of 
future programs and policies within ETGSA. 4Creeks, who provides technical support at 
professional services to ETGSA, has provided ETGSA with a Proposal (see Exhibit A) that 
outlines a 4-phase approach to developing such a system: 

• Phase 1 –Discovery, Development of Technical Specifications, and application 
wireframing 

• Phase 2 –Development (Database & Backend Development, Draft Front-End 
Development) 

• Phase 3 –User Interface Design, Testing, & Launch 
• Phase 4 –Maintenance 

The current proposal is to undertake Phase 1. The result of Phase 1 would be a Technical 
Specifications document that ETGSA can use to develop this DMS, either through seeking the 
continued services of 4Creeks or seeking the services of another professional entity. 

 

 

 



 

 Board of Directors  
 May 2, 2019 

 
 
Background: 

Pursuant GSP Regulations Section 352.6, “Each Agency shall develop and maintain a data  
management system that is capable of storing and reporting information relevant to the 
development or implementation of the Plan and monitoring of the basin.” 

 

Fiscal Impact: The Time & Materials Estimate provided for Phase 1 is $23,740. 

 
Attachments:  

• Exhibit A – 4Creeks, Inc. Proposal (April 5, 2019 – SGMA Management Website 
Application Development Services) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 















 

 Board of Directors  
 May 2, 2019 

 
 

Agenda Item 5.g 

Consider appointment of Stakeholder Committee Chair 
and Vice Chair 

 

Staff Report to the ETGSA Board 

 
Subject:  Appointment of Stakeholder Committee Chair and Vice Chair  

Submitted By:   Executive Director 

Recommended Action: Defer to Board Direction 

 
Executive Summary: 

Currently, Director Leider and Alternate Director Bennett sit as the Chair and Vice Chair, 
respectively, of the ETGSA’s Stakeholder Committee. There has been discussion to consider 
switching the roles of these individuals to better accommodate their schedules and other 
outside obligations. 

 

Background: 

Pursuant the ETGSA Bylaws Section 5.4.2. Chair and Vice-Chair – “The Board shall appoint one 
Director or Alternate Director to be a non-voting member of and the Chair of the Stakeholder 
Committee.  The Board shall also appoint one Director or Alternate Director to be a non-voting 
member of and the Vice-Chair of the Stakeholder Committee.  No meetings of the Stakeholder 
Committee shall take place without the presence of the Chair or Vice-Chair.” 

 

Fiscal Impact:  

• n/a 

 
Attachments:  

• n/a 



 

 Board of Directors  
 May 2, 2019 

 
 

Agenda Item 5.h 

Correspondence from SWRCB, “Resources for 
Groundwater Sustainability Agencies to Consider When 

Complying with the Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act” - April 11, 2019 

 

Staff Report to the ETGSA Board 

 
Subject:  Correspondence from SWRCB regarding GSA SGMA Resources 

Submitted By:   Executive Director 

Recommended Action: n/a (report is for informational purposes) 

 
Executive Summary: 

The State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) recently sent correspondence to the all GSA 
Leads in the State. The correspondence (see Exhibit A) included several documents and 
enclosures in the form of Fact Sheets to provide clarity and recommendations on various SGMA 
processes, topics, and resources available to GSAs, including: 

• Probationary Designation and Groundwater Regulation by the State Water Board 
• Stakeholder Inclusion 
• State and Regional Water Boards Basics 
• Funding Opportunities 
• Purpose of Use for Underground Storage Projects 

The aforementioned Fact Sheets can be reviewed in full at 
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/gmp/sgma.html. Staff shall consider the 
information provided as it develops the GSP. 

Background: n/a 

Fiscal Impact:  n/a 

Attachments: Exhibit A, Cover Letter of SWRCB Correspondence dated April 11, 2019 

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/gmp/sgma.html












 

 Board of Directors  
 May 2, 2019 

 
 

• Approve the Minutes of April 4, 2019 Finance Committee Meeting. (Unanimous) 
• Recommended adoption of the policy [Purchasing Policy] to the Board, pending legal 

review. (Unanimous) 
• Recommended adoption of the policy [Agency-Issued Credit Card Policy] to the Board, 

pending legal review. (Unanimous) 
• Moved to Authorize that the Executive Director engage outside Special Counsel to 

review the employee handbook and other employment-related documents at a limit not 
to exceed $5,000. (Unanimous) 

Meeting #3 - The ETGSA Finance Committee met on April 23, 2019. Below is a summary of the 
meeting: 

Directors Present – Director Kisling, Director Schneider 

Directors Absent – Director Holmes 

Summary of Actions Taken -  

• Approve the Minutes of April 16, 2019 Finance Committee Meeting. (Unanimous) 
• Authorized the Scope of Work [TH&Co, expanded study along the FKC]. (Unanimous) 

 
A report on the Meeting of the ETGSA Finance Committee, scheduled to be held on May 2, 
2019, will be given verbally. 
 
Background: 

n/a 

 
Fiscal Impact: 

n/a  

 
Attachments: n/a 

 

 

 

 







 

 Board of Directors  
 May 2, 2019 

 
 

Agenda Item 7.c 

Receive Stakeholder Committee Monthly Reports 
 

Staff Report to the ETGSA Board of Directors 

 
Subject:    Summary of Recent ETGSA Stakeholder Committee Meetings 

Submitted By:   Executive Director 

Recommended Action: n/a (report is for informational purposes) 

 
Executive Summary: 

Meeting #1: ETGSA’s Stakeholder Committee met on April 8, 2019. Below is a summary of the 
meeting: 

Members Present – Member Konda, Member Bennett, Member O’Sullivan, Member Castle, 
Chairman Leider, Member Briano, Member Guthrie, member Watkins 

Members Absent – Member Mulholland, Member Magana, Member Parsons, Member 
Inestroza  

Summary of Actions Taken -  

• Approved the minutes of the March 28, 2019 Stakeholder Committee Special Meeting 
(Majority Yes, 1 Abstention) 

• Moved to schedule a Special Meeting of the Stakeholder Committee on April 25, 2019 
(Majority Yes, 1 No) 

• Moved to recommend that 1) Tier 1 transitional water be made available to irrigated 
lands on a proportional basis, with volume and price to be determined, with a carryover 
policy that it can be carried over into the next five-year period for a fee (to be 
determined) and exhausted thereafter, and that it be tradeable and that 2) Tier 2 water 
be made available to irrigated acres through an application-based process based on 
need with guidelines to be established, and that the Tier 2 water not be eligible for carry 
over and not be tradable nor marketable. (Unanimous) 

Meeting #2: ETGSA’s Stakeholder Committee met on April 25, 2019. Below is a summary of the 
meeting: 







http://easterntulegsa.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/17.-apr_17_2019_prelim_draft_sub_aoc.pdf


http://www.tulesgma.com/




































































http://www.easterntulegsa.com/resources/#gsp












 

 Board of Directors  
 May 2, 2019 

 
 

Agenda Item 10.b 

Direct Staff on Inclusion and Use of Management Areas 
within the GSP 

 

Staff Report to the ETGSA Board of Directors 

 
Subject:  Current GSP Policy Matters 

Submitted By:   Executive Director 

Recommended Action: Defer to Board Direction 

 
Executive Summary: 

TH&Co has requested that GSA Management Areas be provided to them by May 10, in order to 
include these in various Subbasin Documents and incorporate these into the Monitoring Plan. 

Staff previously reviewed Management Area concepts with both the Executive and Stakeholder 
Committees, and recommended the use of four initial management area types within the GSP 
(see Exhibit A). Both committees approved these four initial management area types. Subject 
to final boundary updates (see comments below), the four management areas types would be 
composed of:   

• Community Management Areas 
o Porterville – Coterminous with COP’s UAB/General Plan Planning Area 
o Terra Bella – Coterminous with TB’s UDB and Overlay of TBID WQIP Boundary 
o Ducor – Coterminous with Ducor’s UDB and Overlay with DCSD Boundary 

• Cross-Boundary Management Area 
o KTWD 

• Subsidence Management Area 
o Note - Not delineated by Staff; defer to TH&Co’s final recommendation  

• Greater Tule Management Area 
o All lands not included within any of the above Management Areas 











 

 Board of Directors  
 May 2, 2019 

 
 

o Moved to accept the staff recommendation on groundwater account eligibility 
(Staff Recommendation – “Any verifiable individual and/or entity should be able 
to maintain a Groundwater Account.”) (Unanimous) – March 28, 2019 

o Moved to accept the staff recommendation (Staff Recommendation – “Should 
sufficient data at a future date indicate that transfers may cause undesirable 
impacts, the GSA should utilize the most efficient approach(es) to manage those 
impacts.”) (Unanimous) – March 28, 2019 

o Moved to accept the staff recommendation (Staff Recommendation – “Until 
further policies are developed, each transfer should be subject to a nominal fee 
and a nominal volumetric set-aside.”) (Majority yes, 1 no, 1 abstention) – March 
28, 2019 

o Moved to accept the staff recommendation (Staff Recommendation – “Yes, the 
ETGSA should coordinate with other Tule Subbasin GSAs who establish similar 
accounting and allocation policies in order to establish a process to allow for 
inter-GSA Transfers.”) (Majority Yes, 1 no) – March 28, 2019 

o Moved to recommend that 1) Tier 1 transitional water be made available to 
irrigated lands on a proportional basis, with volume and price to be determined, 
with a carryover policy that it can be carried over into the next five-year period 
for a fee (to be determined) and exhausted thereafter, and that it be tradeable 
and that 2) Tier 2 water be made available to irrigated acres through an 
application-based process based on need with guidelines to be established, and 
that the Tier 2 water not be eligible for carry over and not be tradable nor 
marketable. (Unanimous) – March 28, 2019 

 
Background: 

At its January 2019 Board Meeting, the following items were discussed as new policy matters to 
be discussed and recommended on by the Committees: 

• Management Areas 
• Sustainable Management Criteria 
• Results of TH&Co Task Items and implications on Projects & Management Actions   
• Mechanisms and functioning of a sharing system 
• Criteria for validating a recharge project 
• Defining historical use 
• Evaluating transfer impacts 
• Inter-GSA transfers 
























	190412- DISCUSSION DRAFT (Preferred) SMCs Tule Subbasin.pdf
	Introduction (Reg. § 354.22)
	Sustainability Goal (Reg. § 354.24)
	Undesirable Results (Reg. § 354.26)
	Chronic Lowering of Groundwater Levels
	Reduction of Groundwater Storage
	Degraded Water Quality
	Land Subsidence
	No Establishment of Undesirable Results for Depletion of Interconnected Surface Waters and Seawater Intrusion (Regs. §354.26 (d))

	Tule Subbasin, Proposed Process for Coordination.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	2019 0502 Tule Subbasin, TH&Co FPSR Process.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	groundwater-banking-guidelines-11-2014.pdf
	Groundwater Banking Guidelines for Central Valley Project Water
	Effective Date: November 12, 2014 Updated May 23, 2018 Draft Proposed Revisions: April 4, 2019
	Introduction
	Authority

	Applicability
	Purpose
	General
	Definitions
	Guidelines for Banking CVP Water
	1. Compliance – A contractorContractor requesting to bankBank CVP Water must be in compliance with the:
	a. Contractor’s previous banking actionBanking Action(s) approved by Reclamation, as appropriate.
	b. Applicable contract under which CVP Water is/was made available for bankingBanking by the Contractor.
	c. Applicable Groundwater Sustainability Plan and Groundwater Sustainability Agency Requirements.
	2. Conveyance – Conveying water for bankingBanking transactions must meet the following:
	a. Conveyance of CVP Water to or from a Groundwater Bank shall follow the general rule of no harm (as determined in the environmental compliance process) to the:
	i. Operations of the CVP
	ii. Other CVP contractorsContractors
	iii. Financial status of the CVP
	iv. Environment
	b. The Contractor depositing CVP Water into a Bankproposing the Banking Action is responsible for:
	i. Coordinating with and acquiring written approvals or agreements for conveyance (if applicable) from the appropriate entity(ies) that may include but are not limited to, the Department of Water Resources, the local Reclamation Area Office, or a Stat...
	ii. If a water banking actionBanking Action requires an exchange for non-CVP Water, aan additional conveyance agreement/contract may be necessary.
	c. The introduction of any water into a CVP facility for bankingBanking returns, must comply with Reclamation’s then-current water quality standards/requirements for that CVP facility.
	3. Recharge and Recovery: Banking or recoveringActions include Recharge and Recovery of CVP Water, and this may be done by direct rechargeRecharge and Recovery, exchange1,, transfer0F , or inIn-lieu.
	a. When Banking in a groundwater subbasin as identified in the current California Department of Water Resource’s Bulletin 118, the Banking Action will occur within the same subbasin(s) that the Contractor’s Contract Service Area overlies.
	b. Unless otherwise approved, Recovered water needs to be put to beneficial use within the Contractor’s Contract Service Area.
	4. Duration: CVP Water deposits into a Groundwater Bank must be made during the term of the existing Federal contract under which the CVP Water is being bankedBanked. If the return of the bankedBanked water extends beyond the duration of the Federal c...
	5. Acreage Limitation Exemption: This section of the Guidelines is only applicable to Contractors that are actively subject to the acreage limitation provisions of Federal Reclamation Law.  On or after the effective date of these Guidelines, CVP Water...
	6. Administrative Costs: The LOA under which bankingBanking occurs will remain in effect during the term of the approval. The Contractor is responsible for any Reclamation costs or expenditures relating to the bankingBanking approval, including any ot...
	7. Purpose of Use: Beneficial use of bankedBanked CVP Water must be consistent with the terms and conditions of the applicable Reclamation CVP Water rights permits and/or licenses and provisions of the contract under which the CVP Water is/was bankedB...
	8. Place of Use: When previously bankedBanked CVP Water is recoveredRecovered through an exchange of non-CVP Water, the non-CVP Water received by the Contractor must be beneficially used within the Contractor's Contract Water Service Area and within t...
	9. Environmental Compliance: Reclamation approval for bankingBanking CVP Water is dependent upon Reclamation and the Contractor complying with applicable environmental requirements including but not limited to:
	a. NEPA
	b. The Endangered Species Act (ESA)
	c. Other applicable state and federal laws
	10. Power: Project Power can only be used for conveyance of CVP waterWater through federal facilities for federal Contractors participating in bankingBanking actions.
	11. Records: The When Banking in an established groundwater storage aquifer operated by a Bank Operator, the Contractor and the Bank Operator, by written agreement, will maintain accounting records of the Contractor’s CVP Water balance depicting CVP W...
	The Contractor will provide monthly detailed accounting during periods of bankingBanking and recoveryRecovery. These may be submitted as part of the water delivery records due on the 20th of every month. If no activity is occurring, accounting records...
	The Contractor is responsible for providing an annual report summarizing the cumulative bankingBanking actions from the initial bankingBanking approval through the end of the then current reporting year, and each year thereafter, as defined in the ban...
	When Banking in a groundwater subbasin as identified in the current California Department of Water Resource’s Bulletin 118, the Contractor shall follow the same reporting procedures outlined above, minus the written agreement and concurrence of record...
	12. Scheduling: The Contractor bankingBanking CVP Water will provide monthly water schedules with proposed quantities of CVP Water for bankingBanking or recoveryRecovery.
	13. Banking Losses: Water losses vary by Groundwater Bank. In order toTo protect the CVP from unreasonable loss, Reclamation, in consultation with Contractors and/or Bank Operators, will review specified losses to determine if the loss is acceptable t...
	a. Acceptable operational losses will be treated as an even exchange.
	b. Reclamation is not responsible for any water losses associated with the bankingBanking transaction once the water passes the specified point of diversion(s) for the bankingBanking action.
	c. Notwithstanding accepted bankingBanking operational losses (as referenced in 13.a and 13.b), a Contractor using CVP waterWater as “leave behind” for an unbalanced bankingBanking arrangement, must transfer the unbalanced quantity to the Groundwater ...
	14. Transfer of Previously Banked CVP Water: Transfer of any previously bankedBanked CVP Water is subject to the water transfer provisions of the CVPIA, Reclamation’s Water Transfer Guidelines, applicable Reclamation policy, contract provisions, and s...
	Reclamation may approve a transfer of previously bankedBanked CVP Water to either a CVP or non-CVP contractor, providing the transfer complies with applicable federal and state laws. The water transfer’s consumptive use requirement is deemed met after...
	15. Rates Associated with Banking CVP Water: CVP Water delivered to a Groundwater Bank will be treated as CVP Water delivered to the Contractor and therefore all applicable CVP rates, charges, and assessments, including any operation and maintenance p...
	16. Quantities of CVP Water Available for Banking:
	a. Article 3F water, 215 water, uncontrolled releases, flood flows, recovered water account water made available through the San Joaquin River Restoration Program, or Class 2 supplies are not subject to quantity limitations for Banking.
	b. Reclamation may place quantity limitations on other CVP contract supplies (those not identified in 16.a) based on the proposed timing of the Banking Action, historic CVP Water use of the Contractor seeking to Bank CVP Water, or any other factor(s) ...
	Appendix A - Acknowledged Water Banks
	Appendix B - Guide for Water Banking Proposal
	1. Name and location of Contractor.
	2. Contract number that allows for bankingBanking CVP Water.
	3. Name and location of the Groundwater Bank.
	4. Complete a written description of the Proposal, including the proposed time period and/or duration, in term of years, for the bankingBanking actions. Identify bankingBanking and recoveryRecovery periods.
	5. State the quantity of CVP Water to be made available for bankingBanking. Identify the initial and subsequent purposes of use for the bankedBanked water; e.g., irrigation water being bankedBanked for future irrigation or municipal and industrial (M&...
	6. Identify the source CVP Water that is being made available for bankingBanking (i.e., Class 1 or 2, water made available pursuant to Section 215 of RRA, transfer water, recirculation water, etc.).
	7. Identify the method or methods by which the water will be bankedBanked, i.e., exchanges, in- lieu, and/or direct rechargeRecharge.
	8. Identify the conveyance methods for delivering the water to the Groundwater Bank and for the return of the bankedBanked water to the Contractor, including the power required. Include any applicable wheeling agreements if necessary.
	9. Identify all conveyance losses and bankingBanking losses associated with the bankingBanking action.
	10. State what environmental requirements (NEPA, ESA, CEQA, and Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act, if applicable) have been completed. Explain and provide documentation.
	11. If non-CVP waterWater will be introduced into Reclamation facilities for bankingBanking returns, provide the water quality information for all water supplies that will be introduced.
	12. Provide information on how & where bankedBanked water will be used after it is recoveredRecovered.
	13. Identify any required State Water Resources Control Board action(s) or other required actions by any other federal, state, city, county, or private entity.
	14. Include the agreement between the Contractor and the Bank. Operator/Groundwater Bank.
	15. Provide documentation that the Banking Action is consistent with the applicable Groundwater Sustainability Plan.
	Acronyms and Abridgments

	2019 0419 ETGSA Proposed Initial FPSR Scenarios - Updated.pdf
	ETGSA
	1. Transitional Pumping Ramp Down
	2. FKC Subsidence Managed Area

	City of Porterville
	1. Implementation of UWMP (Demand Increase)
	2. Implementation of UWMP (Recycled Water Applied to Agriculture)
	3. Implementation of UWMP (Recycled Water Applied to Percolation/Recharge)
	4. Ongoing Recharge of Tule River Water in Basins
	5. New Recharge of Imported FKC Water in Basins

	Porterville Irrigation District
	1. Service Areas 1 & 2 – New Distribution System
	2. Falconer Banking Project
	3. PID Landowner & District Recharge Activities (PID Recharge Policy)

	Saucelito Irrigation District
	1. Conway Banking Project
	2. SID Landowner & District Recharge Activities (SID Recharge Policy)

	KTWD Irrigation District
	1. In-District Pricing
	2. In-District Surface Water Storage
	3. CRC Pipeline Project

	Terra Bella Irrigation District
	1. Deer Creek Recharge

	Terra Bella Irrigation District
	1. Success Reservoir Enlargement Project

	Hope Water District
	1. In-District Recharge Basins

	Ducor Irrigation District
	1. In-District Recharge Basins





